MINUTES OF THE NHLC DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT & LICENSING MEETING FOR WEDNESDAY, JUNE 5, 2013

1. <u>LICENSEES WHO HAVE NOT ATTENDED MANDATORY TRAINING:</u>

None

2. <u>HEARINGS SCHEDULED AT THE LIQUOR COMMISSION, 50 STORRS STREET, CONCORD, NH:</u>

June 19, 2013 @ 2:00 p.m.:

Drynk, 20 Old Granite Street, Manchester, NH.

Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #1432103.

Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22.

Cited for violation of RSA 179:5, I - served or sold an alcoholic beverage to an individual who was visibly intoxicated or who a reasonable and prudent person would know is intoxicated – 2 counts. Cited for violation of RSA 179:51 – failed to maintain an orderly premise – 4 counts. Dates of violations: October 16, 2011, October 29, 2011, January 19, 2012 & January 20, 2012. Case #s: 11-490-OF, 11-511-OF, 12-30-OF, 12-31-OF & 12-32-OF.

June 26, 2013 @ 2:00 p.m.:

Time Out Sports Bar & Grill, 101 Mulberry Street, Claremont, NH.

Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1403303. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Cited for violation of RSA 179:5, I - served or sold an alcoholic beverage to an individual who was visibly intoxicated or who a reasonable and prudent person would know is intoxicated. Date of violation: August 18, 2012. Case #: 12-228-OF.

HEARING SCHEDULED AT THE DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT, 57 REGIONAL DRIVE, CONCORD, NH:

None

3. WARNING LETTERS/FINES/SUSPENSIONS/MANDATORY TRAINING FOR COMMISSION APPROVAL:

a. Jade Dragon, 515 D.W. Highway, Merrimack, NH. Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #1341903 licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22. Cited for violation of RSA 179:5, I - served or sold an alcoholic beverage to an individual who was visibly intoxicated or who a reasonable and prudent person would know is intoxicated - 3 counts. Cited for violation of RSA 179:51 – failed to maintain an orderly premise – 2 counts. Dates of violations: November 24 & 25, 2010 & September 15, 2012. Case #s: 11-188-OF, 11-187-OF & 12-281-OF. Recommendation: For violation of RSA 179:5, I - a \$2,000 administrative fine with \$500 suspended twelve (12) months pending no like violation, 4 points assessed to the liquor license, the license to sell alcohol in the cocktail lounge only suspended for seven (7) days with two (2) days held in abeyance for twelve (12) months pending no like violation commencing June 15, 2013 with re-grant on June 20, 2013 & mandatory attendance at a Total Education in Alcohol Management (TEAM) seminar within thirty (30) days of adjudication for all servers working at the time the violations occurred; for violations of RSA 179:51, a \$500 administrative fine suspended for twelve (12) months pending no like violation. THE LICENSEE APPEARED AT THE REQUEST OF THE COMMISSION AND STATED THAT **MEASURES HAVE BEEN TAKEN TO PREVENT FURTHER VIOLATIONS INCLUDING INCREASED SECURITY AND DETAILS, INCREASED STAFFING, LIGHTING HAS BEEN** IMPROVED AND THE DJS INFORM PATRONS THAT THEY CANNOT TAKE DRINKS ONTO THE

DANCE FLOOR; COMMISSIONER MILLIGAN MOVED TO ACCEPT THE RECOMMENDATION; CHAIRMAN MOLLICA SECONDED THE MOTION; THE MOTION PASSED.

 Mobil On The Run, 82 Derry Road, Hudson, NH.
 Combination Off-Premises Beverage/Wine/Tobacco #3265947 licensed pursuant to RSA 178:18/126-K:4.

Cited for violation of RSA 179:5, I – served or sold alcoholic beverage to an underage person – 3 counts.

Date of violations: April 20, 2012.

Case #: 12-143-OF.

Recommendation: \$1,500 administrative fine with \$500 suspended for twelve (12) months pending no like violation, four (4) points assessed to the liquor license, the license to sell alcohol suspended for six (6) days with two (2) held in abeyance for twelve (12) months pending no like violation commencing June 11, 2013 with re-grant on June 15, 2013, mandatory attendance at a Management Training Seminar (MTS) for all managers within thirty (30) days of adjudication & mandatory attendance at a Total Education In Alcohol Management (TEAM) seminar for all clerks within thirty (30) days of adjudication.

THE LICENSEE'S COUNSEL APPEARED ON BEHALF OF THE LICENSEE AT THE REQUEST OF THE COMMISSION; MEASURES TAKEN TO PREVENT FURTHER VIOLATIONS INCLUDE HAVING TERMINATED THE CLERK WHO COMMITTED THE VIOLATION, THE MANAGER WAS SUSPENDED AND RECEIVED ADDITIONAL TRAINING, ALL CLERKS RECEIVED ADDITIONAL TRAINING AND TERRITORY MANAGERS VISIT THIS ESTABLISHMENT MORE FREQUENTLY; COMMISSIONER MILLIGAN MOVED TO APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATION; CHAIRMAN MOLLICA SECONDED THE MOTION; THE MOTION PASSED.

c.

Supreme House Of Pizza, 72 & 68 Main Street, Raymond, NH. Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #430103 licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22. Cited for violation of RSA 179:19, VI/RSA 647:2 – allowed gambling and wagering on the premises. Cited for violation of RSA 179:20, II – allowed an employee to consume alcoholic beverage while working.

Cited for violation of RSA 179:27, II - served or consumed alcoholic beverage in areas not approved by the Commission.

Dates of violations: January 7, 2010, February 18, 2010, March 20, 2010, July 30, 2010, August 13, 2010, August 27, 2010 & September 22, 2010.

Case #s: 09-401-OF.

Recommendation: Settlement reached for a \$500 administrative fine, the license to sell alcohol suspended for three (3) days and held in abeyance for twelve (12) months pending no like violation of RSA 179:19, VI/RSA 647:2; for violations of RSA 179:20, II, a \$300 administrative fine suspended for twelve (12) months pending no like violation; for violation of RSA 179:27, II, a \$250 administrative fine suspended for twelve (12) months pending no like violation; the Toshiba laptop and video cameras seized during execution of the search warrant shall be returned to the licensee; funds seized in the amount of \$8,389.00 shall be forfeited and used by the NH Liquor Commission, Division of Enforcement & Licensing for the sole purpose of education, training and/or enforcement of the laws and/or administrative rules of the State of New Hampshire.

THE LICENSEE WAS NOT ABLE TO APPEAR AT THE COMMISSION'S REQUEST; THE LICENSEE WILL APPEAR AT THE NEXT AGENDA MEETING; COMMISSIONER MILLIGAN MOVED TO TABLE THIS ITEM; CHAIRMAN MOLLICA SECONDED THE MOTION; THE MOTION PASSED.

4. NOTIFICATION OF NON-CONTESTED TITLE XIII VIOLATION FINES PAID IN FULL:

a. Garagiste, 707 South Lander Street, Seattle, WA. Direct Shipper Permit #8060933 licensed pursuant to RSA 178:27. Cited for violation of RSA 178:27, V – failed to report a shipment by the 15th of November, 2012 & December, 2012. Date of violation: March 6, 2013. Case #: 13-70-OF. \$500 administrative fine paid. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. b. Hong Kong Gardens, 81 Main Street, Plymouth, NH. Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #432403 licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22. Cited for violation of RSA 179:27, II - served or consumed alcoholic beverage in areas not approved by the Commission. Date of violation: February 22, 2013. Case #13-83-OF. \$250 administrative fine paid. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

5. NOTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE CHECKS SCHEDULED WITHIN NINETY (90) DAYS:

Allenstown, NH; Bow, NH; Derry, NH; and Henniker, NH.

6. NOTIFICATION OF ALCOHOL COMPLIANCE CHECKS:

None

7. NOTIFICATION OF TOBACCO COMPLIANCE CHECKS:

None

8. NOTIFICATION OF NEW APPROVED LICENSES:

- a. AKWA Marina Beach Bar LLC, 95 Centenary Avenue, Laconia, NH 03886. Issued Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1464503 pursuant to RSA 178:21. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- b. Candela Tapas Lounge LLC, 15 Lebanon Street, Hanover, NH 03755.
 Issued Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1464603 pursuant to RSA 178:21.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- c. Catalano, Sam DBA S&S Corner Store, 109 Ocean Blvd., Hampton, NH 03842.
 Issued Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #3301447 pursuant to RSA 178:20.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- Hidden Valley RV Park LLC, 81 Damren Road, Derry, NH 03038.
 Issued Seasonal Sports Recreation Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #6016705 pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(v).
 - COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- Jimmy's Convenience Store LLC DBA Jimmy's Smoke Shop, 239 Loudon Road, Unit A, Concord, NH 03301. Issued Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #3303547 pursuant to RSA 178:18.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- f. Las Joyas Incorporated DBA Mexico Lindo, 17 Portsmouth Avenue, Exeter, NH 03833. Issued Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1467903 pursuant to RSA 178:21. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- g. Oglethorpe, Inc., 312 Daniel Webster Highway, Suite 3, Meredith, NH 03253.
 Issued Retail Table Wine Off-Premise Wine Only License #3157346 pursuant to RSA 178:19.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- h. Portsmouth BBC, Inc., DBA British Beer Company, Corner of 103 Hanover Street & 2 Portwalk Place, Portsmouth, NH 03801.
 Issued Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1465603 pursuant to RSA 178:21.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- i. Quick To Go Gas And Service, Inc., 547 Central Avenue, Dover, NH 03820. Issued Retail Tobacco, Tobacco Only License #119817 pursuant to RSA 178:19-a. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

- j. Spenders Smoke Shop, Inc., Spacies Gifts and Smoke Shop, 617 Main Street, Laconia, NH 03246. Issued Retail Tobacco, Tobacco Only License #127017 pursuant to RSA 178:19-a. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- K. Treats and Treasures LLC, 3316 North Main Street, Pittsburg, NH 03592.
 Issued Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #3302847 pursuant to RSA 178:18.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

9. NOTIFICATION OF APPROVED SOLICITORS/REPRESENTATIVE & DIRECT SHIPPER APPLICATIONS:

TOTAL NUMBER OF ACTIVE DIRECT SHIPPER PERMITS ENDING JUNE 3, 2013: 993

Black Prince Distillery, Inc., 691 Clinton Avenue, Clifton, NJ 07015. a. Issued Liquor and Wine Vendor Off-Premise Wine and Liquor License #108145 pursuant to RSA 178:9. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Bully Boy Distillers LLC, 35 Cedric Street, Roxbury MA 02119. b. Issued Liquor and Wine Vendor Off-Premise Wine and Liquor License #108045 pursuant to RSA 178:9. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Caymus Vineyards, Inc., DBA Caymus Vineyards, 8744 Conn Creek Road, Rutherford, CA 94753. c. Issued Direct Shipper Permit #8208033 pursuant to RSA 178:27. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Conundrum Winery LLC DBA Conundrum, 8744 Conn Creek Road, Rutherford, CA 94573. d. Issued Direct Shipper Permit #8207633 pursuant to RSA 178:27. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Creative Wine Concepts, Inc., DBA Scott Harvey Wines, 830 Fulton Lane, Saint Helena, CA 94574. e. Issued Direct Shipper Permit # 8207933 pursuant to RSA 178:27. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. f. DCI Miami, Inc., 11403 NW 39 Street, Miami Beach, FL 33139. Issued Beverage Vendor Off-Premise Beverage Only License #67931 pursuant to RSA 178:15. Manufacturer: Carib Brewery, Ltd (Trinidad) COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Eurobrew, Inc., 58 Union Street, Ashland, MA 01721. g. Issued Beverage Vendor Off-Premise Beverage Only License #68031 pursuant to RSA 178:15. Manufacturer: Thatchers United Kingdom. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Full Pull Wines LLC DBA Full Pull Wines, 33-16 NE Blakely Street, Seattle, WA 98105. h. Issued Direct Shipper Permit #8207533 pursuant to RSA 178:27. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. i. Gandona, Inc., DBA Gandona, 1535 Sage Canyon Road, Saint Helena, CA 94574. Issued Direct Shipper Permit #8207733 pursuant to RSA 178:27. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Garp, Per-Olof, 509 Clough Hill Road, Loudon, NH 03307. j. Issued Liquor and Wine Representative Off-Premise Wine and Liquor License #606135 pursuant to RSA 178:10. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Hill Family, Inc. DBA Hill Family Estate, 7 Tallent Lane, Yountville, CA 94599. k. Issued Direct Shipper Permit #8207333 pursuant to RSA 178:27. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. LB&B Associates, Inc., 9891 Broken Land Parkway, Suite 400, Columbia, MD 02146. I. Issued Carrier Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liguor License #754116 pursuant to RSA 178:14. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Les Trois Emme Vinevards & Winery LLC, 8 Knight Road, New Marlborough, MA 01230. m. Issued Liquor and Wine Vendor Off-Premise Wine and Liquor License #107945 pursuant to RSA 178:9. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

- n. Macari Vineyards & Winery, Ltd., 36230 Main Road, Cutchogue, NY 11935. Issued Direct Shipper Permit #8207433 pursuant to RSA 178:27. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- Moss Vineyards LLC DBA Moss Vineyards, 512 Botetourt Street, Norfolk, VA 23510. Issued Direct Shipper Permit #8207833 pursuant to RSA 178:27.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

10. CANCELLATION OF PERMITS FOR COMMISSION APPROVAL:

None

11. NOTIFICATION OF APPROVED PETITIONS:

- a. AKWA Marina Beach Bar LLC, 95 Centenary Avenue, Laconia, NH 03886. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1464503. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside beach area with a capacity of 90 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
 b. Bear None LLC, 27 Main Street, Rumney, NH 03266. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1458103.
 - Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside patio with seating for 18 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.

- Bluaqua LLC, 292 NH Route 101, Amherst, NH 03031. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1459903. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside patio area with seating for 35 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- d. Bluaqua LLC, 292 NH Route 101, Amherst, NH 03031. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1459903. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval to charge a corkage fee, to wit, to charge a fee when serving a bottle of wine brought in by customers, stored separately from licensed alcohol, served when requested and when a full course meal is consumed pursuant to RSA 178:21, II, a (5).
 - COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- e. Bob House and Reel N' Tavern LLC (The), 520 Whittier Highway, Moultonborough, NH 03254. Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #1466303. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside patio area with seating for 20 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
 f. Boston Culinary Group, Inc., 719 Cherry Valley Road, Gilford, NH 03246.
- f. Boston Culinary Group, Inc., 719 Cherry Valley Road, Gilford, NH 03246. Sports Recreation Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #6016705. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(v). Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside, tented beer garden with a capacity of 11,440 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
 g. CCF Golf Management LLC DBA Countryside Golf Club, 20 Country Club Lane, Route 13, Dunbarton, NH 03046. Seasonal Sports Recreation Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #6016505.
 - Seasonal Sports Recreation Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #6016505. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(v). Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside deck area with a capacity of 45 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. **COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.**

h. CCF Golf Management LLC DBA Countryside Golf Club, 20 Country Club Lane, Route 13, Dunbarton, NH 03046. Seasonal Sports Recreation Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #6016505. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(v). Requested approval to use a mobile cart, to wit, a mobile cart to be used on the fairways for sales and service of alcohol pursuant to Liq. 206.10 (a)(1), Liq. 404.05 (a)(1) and Liq. 509. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
i. Capitol Center for the Arts, 44 South Main Street, Concord, NH 03301. Performing Arts Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #398008. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(m). Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, the orchestra with a capacity of 876, the Mezzanine with a capacity of 113 and a balcony with a capacity of 318 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.

COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

- j. Chapanga's Griddle and Grill LLC, 168 Elm Street, Milford, NH 03055. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1411203. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside parking area on May 31, 2013 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
 k. Club Manchvegas, Inc., 50 Old Granite Street, Manchester, NH 03101.
- Club Manchvegas, Inc., 50 Old Granite Street, Manchester, NH 03101.
 Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #1419703.
 Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22.
 Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside sidewalk area with seating for 20 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.

COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

I. Cocheco Country Club, 145 Gulf Road, Dover, NH 03820.

Sports Recreation Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #6016505.

Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(v).

Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, to utilize the liquor license in trailers designated for the storage of alcohol, the pro shop and the food trailer; a tented area will be available for serving and the mobile facility cart will be in operation on the fairways of the golf course until such time as club house renovations are complete on or about June 30, 2013 following a recent fire pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.

COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

 m. Coco Mart, Inc. DBA Jiffy Mart, Route 12, Walpole, NH 03609. Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #3302847. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:18. Requested authorization to transfer business location, to wit, to transfer the alcohol inventory from 708 Route 12, Walpole, NH to the new location at 549 Main Street, Route 12, Walpole NH on May 22, 2013 pursuant to RSA 179:32. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
 n. Craft Brew Alliance, Inc. DBA Redhook Ale Brewery,

 Craft Brew Alliance, Inc. DBA Redinook Ale Brewery, Pease International, 1 Redhook Way, Portsmouth, NH 03801. Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #1419703. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside tent in the back yard with seating for 252 on May 26, 2013 from 9 am to 3 pm pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
 O. Cumberland Farms, Inc., Main Street, Milton, NH 03851.

Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #865547. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:18. Requested approval for authorization to transfer alcohol products to another licensed premise, to wit,

to close the current business at Main Street, Milton, NH, License #865547 for renovations and transfer the beer and wine products to Route 202, Highland Street, Rochester, NH, License #773847 on May 28, 2013 pursuant to RSA 178:29, VIII.

- p. Cumberland Farms Inc., Route 33, Portsmouth Avenue, Greenland, NH 03840. Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #866547.
 - Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:18.

Requested approval for authorization to transfer alcohol products to another licensed premise, to wit, to close the current business at Route 33, Portsmouth Avenue, Greenland, NH, License #866547 on June 21, 2013 for renovations and transfer its beer and wine products to Route 4, Rollinsford, NH, License #75847 pursuant to RSA 178:29, VIII.

COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

- q. Dabrowski, Robert DBA Candia Vineyards, 702 High Street, Candia, NH 03034.
 Wine Manufacturer Off-Premise Wine Only License #561430.
 Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:8.
 Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, Town of Weare Farmer's Market, Moody Pond Marketplace, 3 George Moody Pond Road on Fridays from June 7, 2013 through October 11, 2013 between 3 pm and 6 pm pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- r. Danbury Country Store LLC, 705 US Route 4, Danbury, NH 03230.
 Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #3300747.
 Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:18.
 Requested approval for authorization to purchase supplies, to wit, to purchase wine products not available in NH liguor stores directly from an approved direct shipper. Hard Row to Hoe, License

#8194333 pursuant to RSA 179:32, IV.

COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

s. Demoulas Super Market, Inc., DBA Market Basket #43, 375 Amherst Street, Nashua, NH 03063. Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #3003047.

Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:18.

Requested approval for authorization to transfer alcohol products to another licensed premise, to wit, transfer the location of License #3003047 from 375 Amherst Street, Nashua, NH to a different section of the same building with the same address on or before June 22, 2013 pursuant to RSA 178:29, VIII. **COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.**

t. Family Dollar, Inc., 121 Main Street, Berlin, NH 03570.

Retail Tobacco, Tobacco Only License #119817.

Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:19-a.

Requested approval for authorization to transfer alcohol products to another licensed premise, to wit, close current location and move all tobacco inventory and license to a new location at 145 Main Street, Berlin, NH 03570 pursuant to RSA 178:29, VIII.

COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

- Fred/Smokey LLC DBA Fores Restaurant, 822 Lafayette Road, Hampton, NH 03842.
 Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1444903.
 Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21.
 Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside area with seating for 12 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
- v. Fulchino Vineyards, Inc., 187 Pine Hill Road, Hollis, NH 03049. Wine Manufacturer Off-Premise Wine Only License #562830. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:8. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, a new tasting room with a capacity of 85 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.

COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

 w. Grason Spalding LLC, DBA 2 Kings Pub, 199 Mountain View Road, Whitefield, NH 03598. Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #1378803. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22.

Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside roped area with seating for 2,000 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.

- Hay Creek Management Company LLC DBA Wolfeboro Inn (The)/Wolfe's Tavern, х. 90 North Main Street, Wolfeboro, NH 03894. Hotel On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #364802. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(k). Requested approval for an outside area, to wit, four outside, tented areas with capacities of 240, 152, 88 & 210 from May 1, 2013 through October 30, 2013 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Hidden Valley RV Park LLC, 81 Damren Road, Derry, NH 03038. у. Sports Recreation Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #6016705. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22. V(v). Requested approval to use a mobile cart, to wit, a mobile cart to be used on the fairways for sales and service of alcohol pursuant to Lig. 206.10 (a)(1), Lig. 404.05 (a)(1) and Lig. 509. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. High Street Farmhouse LLC, 9 High Street, Goffstown, NH 03045. z. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1457603. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside deck area with a capacity of 32 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Jewell Towne Vineyards, Inc., 65 Jewell Street, South Hampton, NH 03827. aa. Wine Manufacturer Off-Premise Wine Only License #561530. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:8. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, Town of Greenland Farmer's Market, Rolling Green Nursery, 64 Breakfast Hill Road on Tuesdays from June 4, 2013 through October 1, 2013 between 3 pm and 6 pm and Town of Weare Farmer's Market, Moody Pond Marketplace, 3 George Moody Pond Road on Fridays from June 7, 2013 through October 11, 2013 between 3 pm and 6 pm pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Koeppel, Fritz DBA Wentworth Resort Hotel, Route 16-A, Jackson, NH 03846. bb. Hotel On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License 209902. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(k). Requested approval for an outside area, to wit, outside tented areas with a capacity of 213 from May 1, 2013 through November 30, 2013 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. L.B.O. Holding, Inc. DBA Attitach/Bear Peak Resort, Route 302, Bartlett, NH 03812. CC. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1009403. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside fenced area with a capacity of 400 from July 1, 2013 through September 2, 2013 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. dd. L.B.O. Holding, Inc., DBA Attitach/Bear Peak Resort, Route 302, Bartlett, NH 03812, Seasonal Rail Car On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1166740. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(p). Requested approval for retention of alcohol, to wit, to store alcohol at a locked storage facility at another location owned by Attitash/Bear Peak Resort, Route 302, Bartlett, NH, License #1009403 pursuant to RSA 179:25. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. LM Aloha Group LLC DBA L 7 M Mansion, 61 Canal Street, Manchester, NH 03101. ee. Sports Recreation Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #6015905.
 - Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(v).

Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside fenced area with capacity of 75 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.

ff. Lakehouse @ Church Landing LLC, 281 Daniel Webster Highway, Meredith, NH 03253. Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #1263703. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside tent and patio area with a capacity of 196 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Loudon Mart LLC. 577 Route 106. Loudon. NH 03307. gg. Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #3279047. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:18. Requested approval to lease part of the premise, to wit, a portion of the licensed building to Subway pursuant to RSA 179:48. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. hh. Makris Lobster & Steak House, Inc., 354 Sheep Davis Road, Concord, NH 03301. Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #1263703. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside area off the deck with a capacity of 44 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Mayeux, Stephan DBA Café Mirabelle, 64 Bridge Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801. ii. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liguor License #425503. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside courtyard area with seating for 10 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. New England Tap House & Grille LLC, 1292 Hooksett Road, Hooksett, NH 03106. jj. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1452403. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside patio area with seating for 22 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. kk. Newbury Palace Pizza LLC, 104 Route 103, Newbury, NH 03255. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine License #1454703. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:20. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside deck area with seating for 16 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Ш. Palace Theatre Trust, 80 Hanover Street, Manchester, NH 03101. Performing Arts Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #388108. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(m). Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside, tented area on May 30, 2013 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Patty B's Eatery and Drinkery LLC DBA Patty B's, 40 Chestnut Street Suite 2, Dover, NH 03820. mm. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1438603. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside patio area with seating for 15 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Pizzico, Inc. DBA Pizzico Italian Restaurant, 7 Harold Drive, Unit 4, Nashua, NH 03060. nn. Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #1074203. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside deck with a capacity of 6 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

00.	Ricker, Molly & Lyden-Ricker, Kim DBA Office Suite (The), 211 Loudon Road Concord, NH 03301. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine License #1416203. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:20.
	Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an additional inside meeting room area (Suite C) with seating for 82 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
pp.	Rusty Moose Restaurant LLC, 15 Homestead Place, Alton, NH 03809. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1443003. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21.
	Requested authorization to transfer business location, to wit, to close the restaurant at 580 Cherry Valley Road, Alton, NH and transfer all alcohol to a new location at 15 Homestead Place, Alton, NH on May 6, 2013 pursuant to RSA 179:32.
	COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
qq.	SAU, Inc. DBA Mug By The Bay, 23 Main Street, Center Harbor, NH 03226. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine License #1440703. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:20.
	Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside fenced area with a capacity of 53 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.
rr.	COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Sandy's Bowling Lanes, Inc., DBA Jonathan's at Park Place,
	16 Rockingham Road, Windham, NH 03087.
	Sports Recreation Facility On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #521505.
	Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22, V(v).
	Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, to serve alcohol in the bowling lane area
	pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.
~~	COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
SS.	SAP House Meadery LLC, 6 Folsom Road, Center Ossipee, NH 03814. Wine Manufacturer Off-Premise Wine Only License #563130.
	Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:8.
	Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, Tamworth Farmer's Market at the Unitarian
	Church parking lot, Tamworth, NH on Saturdays from May 18, 2013 through October 5, 2013 between
	9 am and 12 pm and Wolfeboro Farmer's Market at Clark Park, Wolfeboro, NH on Thursdays from
	June 20, 2013 through October, 2013 between 12:30 pm and 4:30 pm pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.
	COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
tt.	Sierra Food Group LLC, DBA Local Eatery, 21 Veterans Square, Laconia, NH 03246.
	Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1454903.
	Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21.
	Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside fenced area with a capacity of 16 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.
	COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
uu.	Smoke and Spirits Downtown Cigar and Bar LLC, 38 North Main Street, Rochester, NH 03867.
uu.	Cigar Bar Beverage/Wine/Liguor/Cigars/Tobacco License #401506.
	Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:20-a.
	Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an additional area with a capacity of 42
	pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.
	COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
VV.	Stone Arch Tavern LLC, 19 Main Street, Hillsborough, NH 03244.
	Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1455703.
	Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21.
	Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside, fenced area with a capacity of 24 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.
	COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

Taylor, III, Gerald DBA Taylor's Country Style Restaurant, 30 Main Street, Meredith, NH 03253. ww. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liguor License #1462703. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, three outside patio areas: the front with a capacity of 8; the patio with a capacity of 15; and the deck with a capacity of 4 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. That Dam Pit Stop LLC, 1000 Monroe Road, Littleton, NH 03561. XX. Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #3276447. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:18. Requested approval to lease part of the premise, to wit, a portion of the licensed building to an archery shop pursuant to RSA 179:48. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Three J Sustainable Table LLC, DBA Graze Sustainable Table, уу. 207 Main Street, New London, NH 03257. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1464403. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside porch/patio area with a capacity of 22 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Lig. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Three J Sustainable Table LLC, DBA Graze Sustainable Table, ZZ. 207 Main Street, New London, NH 03257. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1464403. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval to charge a corkage fee, to wit, to charge a fee when serving a bottle of wine brought in by customers, stored separately from licensed alcohol, served when requested and when a full course meal is consumed pursuant to RSA 178:21, II, a (5). COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Treats and Treasures LLC, 3316 Main Street, Pittsburg, NH 03592. aaa. Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine/Tobacco License #3302847. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:18. Requested approval to lease part of the premise, to wit, a direct entrance to a residential premise with the door to be locked at all times pursuant to RSA 179:48, IV. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED. Throwback Brewery LLC, 121 Lafayette Road, North Hampton, NH 03862. bbb. Nano-Brewery License #200222. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:12-a. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, City of Dover Farmer's Market at the Chamber of Commerce Parking Lot, corner of 6th and Central Avenue, Dover, NH on Wednesdays from June 5, 2013 through October 9, 2013 between 1:30 pm and 6:30 pm; Town of Exeter Farmer's Market at Swasey Parkway, Exeter, NH on Thursdays from May 23, 2013 through October 31, 2013 between 1:30 pm and 6:30 pm.; and City or Portsmouth Farmer's Market at City Hall, Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, NH on Saturdays from May 25, 2013 through November 2, 2013 between 8 am and

1:30 pm pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

WVSR LLC, 29 Village Road, Waterville Valley, NH 03215. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1460803. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside, tented area on the town square May 26, 2013 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.
WVSR LLC, 29 Village Road, Waterville Valley, NH 03215. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1460803. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21.

Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside tented area from June 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05. **COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.**

 Whigham, John DBA Almost There, Route 16, Albany, NH 03818. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1206503. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requested approval for authorization of other areas, to wit, an outside patio area with a capacity of 34 pursuant to RSA 178:24 and Liq. 404.05.
 COMMISSION ACKNOWLEDGED.

12. <u>FELON EXCEPTIONS FOR COMMISSION APPROVAL</u>:

Clemento's Pizzaria & Brew, 160 Washington Street, Rochester, NH. Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1466103 licensed pursuant to RSA 178:21. Requests approval for a Felon Exception for Andrew Clement as a licensee pursuant to RSA 178:4, RSA 179:23 and Liq. 404.06(c). Case #: 13-140-OF. Recommendation: **DENIAL**. **COMMISSIONER MILLIGAN MOVED TO ACCEPT THE RECOMMENDATION TO DENY APPROVAL OF THE WAIVER BASED ON THE APPLICANT'S CRIMINAL HISTORY SINCE HIS FELONY CONVICTION**.

THE WAIVER BASED ON THE APPLICANT'S CRIMINAL HISTORY SINCE HIS FELONY CONVICTION; CHAIRMAN MOLLICA SECONDED THE MOTION; THE MOTION TO DENY THE APPROVAL OF THE WAIVER PASSED.

13. COMMISSION DECISIONS PENDING AFTER AGENDA MEETING:

Tuckaway NH LLC, 58 Route 27, Raymond, NH 03077.

Combination Off-Premise Beverage/Wine Liquor License #3288447 licensed pursuant to RSA 178:18. Requests permission to hold a brew pub license on the same property as the current combination license; the Licensee currently holds a combination license and a Restaurant On-Premise Beverage/Wine/Liquor License #1442903 on the same property and plans to change the restaurant to a brew pub.

Recommendation: TO BE DISCUSSED.

LISA SOIETT APPEARED BEFORE THE COMMISSION WITH LICENSEE, PAUL SUMBLIARIS AND PAUL PIRAINO TO CHANGE THE RESTAURANT LICENSE TO A BREW PUB LICENSE; THE LICENSE QUESTIONED WHETHER THE LICENSEE COULD SELL BEER IN HIS ESTABLISHMENT THAT HAD BEEN MANUFACTURED BY OTHER BEER PRODUCERS; CHIEF EDWARDS OF THE DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT STATED THE LICENSEE COULD ONLY SELL ON HIS PROPERTY BEER THAT HE PRODUCED; CHIEF EDWARDS AND THE LICENSEE WERE INSTRUCTED TO SUBMIT A WITTEN ARGUMENT SUPPORTING THEIR RESPECTIVE POSITIONS.

THE DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT ARGUES THAT THE LICENSEE INTENDS TO BREW BEER AND SELL IT UNDER BOTH THE COMBINATION AND BREW PUB LICENSES BUT WOULD ALSO LIKE TO SELL BEER PRODUCTS PRODUCED BY OTHER MANUFACTURERS WHICH IS NOT ALLOWED PURSUANT RSA 179:11; THE COMMISSION IS AWAITING A WRITTEN ARGUMENT FROM THE LICENSEE. ON APRIL 25, 2013, THE DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT LEFT VOICEMAIL FOR THE LICENSEE REGARDING SUBMITTING A WRITTEN ARGUMENT; THE LICENSEE HAS NOT RETURNED THE CALL. **THE DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT RECOMMENDS REMOVING THIS ITEM FROM THE AGENDA UNTIL THE LICENSEE REQUESTS FURTHER ACTION.**

COMMISSIONER MILLIGAN MOVED TO APPROVE THE DIVISION'S RECOMMENDATION; CHAIRMAN MOLLICA SECONDED THE MOTION; THE MOTION PASSED.

14. <u>COMMISSION DECISIONS PENDING AFTER HEARING</u>:

None

15. <u>HEARING RESULTS</u>:

Irokos Group LLC, 101 Tremont Street, Suite 908, Boston, MA 02108.
 Beverage Vendor Off-Premise Beverage Only License #66931 licensed pursuant to RSA 178:15.
 Requests approval of three new brands, MOJO Tropical Fruit, Strawberry Kiwi and Fruit Punch; these products are clear liquid, resembling water and are packaged in containers that resemble specialty

water products; the lettering stating alcohol content and alcohol percentage are not easily seen and the containers could easily be thought to contain non-alcoholic product pursuant to RSA 179:33. Recommendation: DENIAL.

COMMISSIONER MILLIGAN MOVED TO APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATION; CHAIRMAN MOLLICA SECONDED THE MOTION; THE MOTION PASSED.

LICENSEE REQUESTED A HEARING ON MARCH 28, 2013.

PRE-HEARING CONFERENCE HELD APRIL 10, 2013; HEARING RESCHEDULED FROM APRIL 10, 2013 TO MAY 8, 2013.

ON MAY 23, 2013, THE COMMISSION ORDERED THAT DIRECTOR WILSON OF THE DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT & LICENSING PROCEED WITH COMPLETION OF THE PETITIONER'S APPLICATION FOR MARKETING FORTHWITH.

b. Yen Yen Restaurant, Shopping Village, Route 202, Peterborough, NH.
 Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge License #267103 licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22.
 Cited for violation of RSA 179:5, I - served or sold an alcoholic beverage to an individual who was visibly intoxicated or who a reasonable and prudent person would know is intoxicated.

Date of violations: August 24, 2012.

Case #: 12-298-OF.

THE HEARING WAS HELD ON MAY 6, 2013 AT 10:00 A.M.; THE COMMISSION WILL DELIBERATE AFTER THE ENFORCEMENT AGENDA MEETING ON MAY 22, 2013.

ON MAY 23, 2013, THE COMMISSION ORDERED AN ADMINISTRATIVE FINE OF \$1,000 WITH \$500 SUSPENDED FOR TWELVE (12) MONTHS PENDING NO LIKE VIOLATION, FOUR (4) POINTS ASSESSED TO THE LIQUOR LICENSE AND THE LICENSE TO SELL ALCOHOL SUSPENDED FOR SEVEN (7) DAYS WITH FOUR (4) DAYS HELD IN ABEYANCE FOR TWELVE (12) MONTHS FROM THE DATE OF THIS ORDER PENDING NO LIKE VIOLATION COMMENCING JUNE 7, 2013 WITH RE-GRANT ON JUNE 10, 2013.

16. <u>MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FOR COMMISSION APPROVAL</u>:

El Tapatio Restaurante Mexicano LLC, a. 707, 4C Route 101A, Pennichuck Square, Merrimack, NH 03054. Restaurant On-Premise Cocktail Lounge Liquor License #1398103. Licensed pursuant to RSA 178:22. Requests a waiver of RSA 179:17, II (a) for exception to hours of sale, to wit, to be open two days a week - Fridays and Saturdays between 11:00 am and 1:00 am. Recommendation: DENIAL. COMMISSIONER MILLIGAN EXPRESSED CONCERN REGARDING WHAT THE LICENSEE WAS **REQUESTING IN TERMS OF REDUCED HOURS AND MOVED TO TABLE THIS ITEM UNTIL** CLARIFICATION COULD BE OBTAINED; THE INVESTIGATOR WHO INVESTIGATED THIS CASE SHALL PROVIDE FURTHER INFORMATION BEFORE THIS ITEM IS REVIEWED AGAIN: CHAIRMAN MOLLICA SECONDED THE MOTION: THE MOTION TO TABLE PASSED. b. Errol General Store, Inc., 76 Main Street, Errol, NH 03579. Agency Store Off-Premise Liquor Only License #980704. Licensed pursuant to RSA 177:9.

Requests approval for renewal of license, to wit, renewal of Agency Store Off-Premise Liquor Only License pursuant to RSA 177:9.

Recommendation: Approval.

COMMISSION MILLIGAN MOVED TO TABLE THIS ITEM SO THAT THE LICENSEE CAN BE CONTACTED TO DETERMINE WHETHER THEY NEED ANY ASSISTANCE; DIRECTOR RICK GERRISH WILL INITIATE CONTACT WITH THE LICENSEE; CHAIRMAN MOLLICA SECONDED THE MOTION; THE MOST TO TABLE PASSED.

c. COMMISSIONER MILLIGAN MOVED TO APPROVE ADMINISTRATIVE RULES LIQ. 400, LIQ. 500, LIQ. 701 – LIQ. 705 AND LIQ. 707 AS AMENDED; CHAIRMAN MOLLICA SECONDED THE MOTION; THE MOTION TO APPROVE PASSED.

17. EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:

None